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Response to Questions 
Written Response to Questions received regarding the Request for Proposals 
to develop a new primary database for the agency 

Posted 10am (PDT), Friday, March 28, 2025 
The questions regarding the RFP received by ORCAA by the 8am deadline on March 14, 2025, are 

listed below, grouped by topic. Our answers follow the questions.  Topics are bookmarked.

Information Technology Questions 

1. Will ORCAA provide a server, or do we need to provide one for them?

If the proposal is on-premises, the price of a server will need to be included.

2. Should email notifications be sent through our email provider, or will ORCAA provide their
own email server?

ORCAA e-mail

3. How does ORCAA envision the project being phased, and are there specific milestones or
deadlines?

This would be discussed with the selected vendor.

4. On a scale from 1 to 5 where 1 represents a vendor proximal to you in Washington and 5
represents a vendor in another state such as California, what is your preference for vendor
proximity for this project? In other words, please rate your preference for local vendors.

We are open to vendors regardless of location, barring any legal restrictions. Preference for

vendors who are available during ORCAA’s normal business hours (Monday – Friday, 8 AM –

4:30 PM PT).

5. Regarding the statement that “ORCAA is seeking a secure database system that is compliant
with all major operating systems (Windows, OSX, Main Linux Distros) and has cloud and on
premises hosting options”:

a) Will a cloud-based database platform that is hosted by Microsoft and uses Widows and SQL
Server behind the scenes satisfy these requirements?

A solution could be built using Windows & SQL Server on a Microsoft host to satisfy the

requirement.

b) Will a cloud-based solution that supports offline access and integration with on-prem
systems satisfy these requirements?

A solution could be built with these specifications and satisfy the requirement.
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6. Approximately how many internal staff will use the solution? 

20 

7. On a scale from 1 to 5 where 1 represents “we are vendor neutral and prefer to use a broad 
array of technologies and products from many different manufacturers” and 5 represents 
“where possible, we prefer to use Microsoft technologies and products as Microsoft is our 
preferred vendor/product manufacturer" what is your preference as it relates to using 
Microsoft technologies and products on this continuum? 

2.5 

8. So that we can ascertain licensing and training costs related to the products below, are you 
currently licensed for and/or using or do you have plans to use any of the following 
technologies: · Microsoft Dataverse · Microsoft PowerApps · Microsoft Power Pages 

We are not currently licensed for the named applications. We do not currently have plans to 

use the named applications. 

9. If you are not currently using one or more of the technologies above, please indicate your 
openness rating below to using each technology on a scale from 1 to 5 where 1 represents 
“Not Open/Will not Use” and 5 represents “Very Open/Strong Desire to Use”. Product 
Openness Rating 

Microsoft Dataverse 

Microsoft PowerApps 

Microsoft Power Pages 

We have no experience with these applications and are not able to determine a rating. We 

are open to new products that will satisfy our project. 

10. We typically conduct the majority of our solution delivery via virtual meetings using 
Microsoft Teams as this: 

· Reduces the cost of the project in terms of both travel time and expenses 

· Enables us to record the sessions for review by anyone who could not attend and/or for 
future reference 

· Enables participants from multiple customer locations to participate independent of their 
location 

· Enables us to have the most qualified resource on our team conduct the session, 
independent of location 

Will this way of conducting project delivery meet your requirements? 

Yes. 

11. Communication Channels: What are the preferred communication channels for project 
updates, issues, and stakeholder engagement? 

Teams, Zoom, E-mail 

12. How critical is full offline functionality for on-premises access, and what specific use cases 
need to be supported? 

There is no need for full offline functionality for on-premises access. 
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13. Would the ORCAA be open to using Dataverse's offline access capabilities to meet some on-
premises requirements? 

There are currently no on-premises requirements listed. 

14. What level of integration is required between the cloud and on-premises systems? 

End user computers on-premises need to be able to access the system via selected method 

of the proposed solution. Integration between cloud and on-premises systems depends 

entirely on the submitted proposals. 

15. Are there existing on-premises data sources that need to be connected to the new database 
solution? 

Not after the initial data migration has occurred. 

16. What security and compliance requirements must be met for both cloud and on-premises 
deployment? 

All submissions should be compliant with any Local, State, Federal laws dictating level of 

security, and compliance. 

17. Does the ORCAA require a fully on-premises solution, or would a hybrid cloud approach be 
acceptable? 

Open to both approaches. We are open to reviewing options presented for both. 

18. Would the ORCAA consider using cloud-hosted solutions with secure gateways to on-
premises data sources? 

The preference is for an entirely cloud-hosted solution, but we are open to other options as 

well. 

19. What are the key drivers behind requiring on-premises hosting—data sovereignty, security, 
performance, or other factors? 

No requirement for on-premises hosting. 

20. Should the solution support seamless data synchronization between cloud and on-premises 
environments? 

The preference is for an entirely cloud-hosted solution. However, we are open to other 

options and ideally, they would support seamless data synchronization. 

21. Are there any specific regulatory constraints that dictate on-premises storage? 

No. 

22. Is the ORCAA open for using offshore resource in an Onshore-Offshore (Hybrid) delivery 
model? with some work being done outside of the US on as-need-basis. 

Are you open to a hybrid delivery model with a mix of offshore and onshore resources?  

Yes.                  

23. Work will be onsite or remote? 

Either is acceptable. 
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24. Can we provide services/deliverables from a complete offshore team to reduce the cost? 

A fully remote team is acceptable. 

25. Does the proposed consultant have to be onsite, or can he/she work offshore as well? 

Remote teams are acceptable. 

26. What are the preferred database technologies (e.g., PostgreSQL, MySQL, SQL Server, NoSQL 
options like MongoDB)? 

We are open to any database technologies that satisfy storage and security requirements. 

27. Should the system support role-based access control (RBAC) with hierarchical permissions? 

Yes. 

28. Does ORCAA require any third-party integrations? 

We would prefer to integrate a credit card payment software (we currently use Point & Pay), 

as well as EPA reporting systems such as ICIS, EIS, and EPS.  

29. Would ORCAA be open to a phased implementation approach, allowing for iterative testing 
and deployment, or is a full-system launch required within a specific timeframe? 

Do you require a phased rollout, or should the transition happen all at once? 

We would prefer a full system launch after iterative testing. We would want to see a detailed 

explanation of the benefits of a phased rollout. 

30. Will the developed solution continue running after the engagement ends? ***Question 
reiterated *** Once the data migration solution is built and completed, the question is 
whether the system will keep running and functioning as expected even after the 
engagement or development phase is over. 

Yes. 

31. ORCAA's current database uses an ACCESS front-end and MySQL back-end. Will the new 
solution be required to fully replace this, or should it support integration with the existing 
setup? 

The new solution should fully replace our current system. 

32. How will public access to the database be managed? Will it be through a web-based user 
interface? 

Yes, web-based user interface. 

33. ORCAA mentions that the database should support both cloud and on-premises hosting. 
Does ORCAA have a preference for one over the other?  

ORCAA’s preference is a cloud-based system; however, we are open to either. 

34. Is the vendor utilizing the infrastructure provided by ORCAA, or is it self-hosted? 

The vendor should suggest the best course of action from their point of view in their 

proposal.  
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35. Should the solution be built with microservices architecture for scalability, or is a monolithic 
application acceptable? ***Question reiterated***Is the plan to have this migration solution 
we are going to build will be a single monolithic application handling such as with all the 
loader jobs and migration logic or a preferably use different services altogether for each 
migration area. 

Both approaches are acceptable, and the RFP should outline the method proposed. 

36. Will the new system need to integrate with existing ORCAA applications or third-party 
services through APIs? If so, what are the expected integration points? 

ORCAA does not have existing applications integrated, or 3rd party connections, to the legacy 

database; however, we are looking for integration of Point & Pay, ICIS and EIS, which are EPA 

reporting systems. 

37. What testing methodologies (e.g., UAT, security testing) are expected before deployment? 
Will ORCAA provide test cases or sample data? 

This will be discussed with the selected vendor. 

38. Does ORCAA require or recommend the use of specific third-party tools, plugins, or 
frameworks for the database system? 

No. 

39. Is there a requirement for detailed system documentation, including API documentation and 
user manuals? 

Yes, we require documentation to be included with this project. 

40. Should the vendor provide detailed documentation, including user manuals and technical 
guides? 

Yes. 

41. What are help files? 

Help files are digital documents accessed within the system to provide staff with 

information, instructions or guidance on how to use a specific portion of the database. 

42. What kinds of dropdown menus can Power Users edit? 

This will be discussed with the selected vendor. 

43. Do the features that enable data access and entry in the field need to be functional without 
an internet signal (for example, outside of cell phone range)?  

Ideally users will be able to enter data if they lose their internet signal; the data would then 

be uploaded when they obtain a connection. 

44. Since the system requires both on-field access and public use, should the solution be fully 
compatible with handheld devices (e.g., tablets, mobile phones)? 

Yes. 

45. What type of handheld devices are considered in functional requirement 26?   

Hand-held devices in RFP Attachment A refers to smart phones.  
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46. In regards to Requirement 25 and 26, is data submission the only necessary functionality for 
mobile/handheld devices? If not, what other functionality is necessary through a 
mobile/handheld interface? 

We want them to have full access to the system as if they were at a computer. 

47. Does ORCAA have a preference of cloud hosting vendor?  

No preference. 

48. In regard to Requirement 4 in Attachment A, to what granularity are admins expected to be 
able to manage data access? Table-level, Row-level, etc.? 

Admins should be able to manage different groups and manage data access most specifically 

to data entry forms in the database. For example, we currently limit access to different input 

forms depending on the staff’s job description.  

49. Throughout Attachment A, you refer to things that should be modifiable by "Power Users", 
could you please define the level of technical ability a "Power User" can be expected to 
have? 

We currently have one user with full capabilities (create new tables, create reports, run 

queries, etc.) for our current database. Two users have the ability to update, correct, or 

delete data from tables and also create queries. With the new database solution, user 

definitions will be discussed with the selected vendor. 

50. Throughout Attachment A, you refer to things that should be modifiable by "Application 
System Administrators", could you please define the level of technical ability a "Application 
System Administrators" can be expected to have? 

 We currently have one staff member who designed the current database and one who has 

extensive knowledge of the current database. Administrator definitions will be discussed 

with the selected vendor. 

51. What level of complexity must the system be able to handle with custom workflows? Can 
you provide an example of a business process that the Agency would like to automate 
through a configurable workflow? 

Custom workflows will involve tasks such as incomplete applications, requests for more 

information, review and commenting on drafts (both internally and externally), billing, 

public noticing, and final document publication. An example that covers most of these is the 

Air Operating Permit (AOP) permitting process, where the workflow looks like this: 

1. Source submits application  

2. Assigned engineer reviews application for completeness 

3. Assigned engineer notifies source of incomplete application 

4. Source submits addendum to application 

5. Assigned engineer review application for completeness (Steps 2-4 repeat as needed) 

and notifies source that application is complete 

6. Assigned engineer drafts permit and sends to assigned inspector to review 

7. Assigned inspector reviews and sends comments back to engineer 
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8. Assigned engineer incorporates comments and sends to Engineering Supervisor for 

review 

9. Engineering Supervisor reviews and sends comments back to engineer 

10. Assigned engineer incorporates comments (Steps 10-11 repeated as needed) and 

sends draft for source review (external) 

11. Assigned engineer receives comments, incorporates changes (if needed), and sends 

to Engineering Supervisor for final review 

12. Engineering Supervisor reviews and approves for public comment 

13. Assigned engineer starts public comment period (posting to website, emails to 

source, EPA’s EPS, public) 

14. When public comment period ends, assigned engineer receives any comments, 

incorporates, and sends to Engineering Supervisor for review 

15. Engineering Supervisor reviews and approves for EPA review 

16. Assigned engineer sends to EPA for review (EPA’s EPS) 

17. Assigned engineer receives any response from EPA 

18. When response is received or 45-day review period ends, assigned engineer 

responds to any EPA issues and sends to Engineering Supervisor for review 

19. Engineer Supervisor reviews and approves for final issuance 

20. Assigned engineer prepares final permit for signatures 

21. If we have electronic signatures set up this would be signed by the assigned 

engineer, then Engineering Supervisor, then Executive Director. 

22. After permit is signed, permit needs to be transmitted to source, EPA via EPA EPS, 

commenters, etc.) and published on our website 

54. Does the agency have a preference between a custom developed solution vs a off-the-shelf 
solution? 

We do not have a preference. We are looking for a system that is the best fit for the agency. 

55. In reference to Requirement 72, what formats must be supported and do they need to be 
categorized by the system? 

At minimum, PDF, JPG, GIF, PNG, HEIC, DOCX, MP4, XLS, ZIP, GZIP, RAR, 7ZIP, TIFF, TAR, DOC, 

TXT, MPEG, AVI, PPT. 

56. In requirement 66, you mention ability to "notify users", what form is this notification 
intended to take? Text message, Email, On web page pop up, etc. ? 

We would prefer notification via the dashboard at login or pop-up notifications during use. 

57. Regarding requirement 25, do you need the ability to work in the field in an OFFLINE mode 
without any internet/cell connection? 

It would be ideal to have offline functionality. 

58. Should the new system support role-based access control (RBAC) for different user groups? 

Yes. 
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59. Do you have a preference for a particular cloud provider (AWS, Azure, Google Cloud, etc.), or 
should the proposal include multiple hosting options? 

There is no preference or brand affinity. We are open to reviewing multiple options 

presented with cost, with a list that highlights the differences between companies. 

60. What are the specific security and compliance requirements (e.g., HIPAA, NIST, SOC 2)? 

We are not subject to the above-listed requirements; however, we do maintain confidential 

information subject to several state laws (RCWs). 

61. Should the solution support multi-factor authentication (MFA) and single sign-on (SSO)? 

Yes. 

62. Do you require data encryption at rest and in transit? 

There is no requirement for current database data to be encrypted at rest or in transit. 

However, if the proposal includes an updated pay system in lieu of our continued use of 

Point & Pay, which requires encryption. 

63. How should user access be managed across different operating systems? 

Web interface. 

64. Is it allowed to use offshore resources for this project? Regarding the question, "Is it allowed 
to use offshore resources for this project?"—it is seeking clarification on whether resources, 
such as employees, contractors, or service providers located outside the United States, can 
be utilized for this project. In other words, is offshore work permitted, or is there a 
requirement that all resources be based within the U.S.? 

Off-shore resources, as defined by the clarification, are permissible for this project. 

65. What type of dynamic charts and graphs are required? 

The details would be discussed with the selected vendor but would primarily be charts of 

graphs related to work conducted such as number of outdoor burning complaints for 

Thurston County each year or revenue from asbestos permits each month. We would likely 

also want to be able to graph emission inventory data (e.g., by county or by source).  

66. Should the records be archived to another external system? If so, what is the name of the 
system and is there an API interface currently available? 

Currently, records are not currently archived by an external system. 

67. Are you referring to online or offline access to the database? Will users have access to a 
laptop and Internet connection while working in the field? 

Users will often have either tablets or laptops and hotspot access while in the field, but 

some areas of our jurisdiction are remote enough where there is no signal. We would like 

them to be able to enter data when offline that would then be uploaded when they 

returned to an area with signal. 
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68. Does EPA’s Electronic Permitting System (EPS) have Virtual Exchange Network Services (VES) 
like EIS and ICIS-Air systems for data transfer? What kind of permitting data must be 
transferred to EPS? 

Based on a brief training session for the new EPS in January, EPA is still working on the new 

EPS platform. We do not currently use the EPS for data submittal. The EPS is a centralized 

platform to collect documents related to Clean Air Act permitting. ORCAA does not know if 

the new platform has VES services for data transfer or if the system is configured to accept 

data uploads at this time. EPA stated they would be taking questions about the system 

through their Contact Us page at https://cdx.epa.gov/Contact. 

69. In regards to Requirement 51 - 53 in Attachment A, what type of integration and format 
required for the EPA's ICIS and EPS? 

ORCAA has not used any integrated or batch upload feature of ICIS. EPA has information on 

ICIS at https://usepa.servicenowservices.com/oeca_icis. 

See the answer to Question 68 above regarding EPS. 

70. Do you prefer hosting the proposed solution on-prem or on a cloud platform? 

We are open to both styles, however a cloud platform is preferred. 

71. If a cloud solution is preferred, would you prefer the vendor to host and manage the 
proposed solution or would ORCAA’s IT organization be responsible for it? 

Both options are potentially viable. This would be discussed with the selected vendor. 

72. Is any onsite work required? 

No. 

73. Is there an incumbent for this work, if so, are they eligible to bid? 

Is there an incumbent currently providing these services? If yes, is the incumbent eligible to 
bid? 

There is no incumbent for this project. 

74. Will you please confirm all of the requirements in Appendix A are within scope? 

The items listed are all within the wants/needs for this project. 

75. Are you looking for something commercially available, or would you consider a custom 
database? 

Is ORCAA looking for a configurable commercial-off-the-shelve (COTS) product? Or a custom-
made solution? 

We are looking for the best solution for our agency. We have no preference as to a 

commercially available or custom database. 

76. By “database,” does ORCAA mean a DBMS or a full-blown web application? 

We are looking for both a front and back-end web-based solution. 

77. Have you completed any design or planning work for the new system that you can share? 

We do not have any designs or plans for the new system. 

https://cdx.epa.gov/Contact
https://usepa.servicenowservices.com/oeca_icis
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78. The RFP states that the system should be secure, compatible with major operating systems 
(Windows, OSX, and Linux), and support both cloud and on-premises hosting. However, 
Attachment A specifies that the solution must be 100% web-based. Does ORCAA have the 
capability to host and maintain a web server on-premises? 

We do have this capability and are open to it, however we want to see options for fully 

cloud-based as well. 

79. Does your staff currently create custom queries, reports, or forms within the Microsoft 
Access front-end? 

No, all queries, reports, and forms are created by in-house database administrators through 

Microsoft Access. 

80. How many staff members are capable of managing the MySQL database? Do they have 
experience in querying the system and adding new fields or tables? 

We have two in-house database administrators that have experience with running queries 

through Microsoft Access. One has experience with adding new fields and tables in MySQL. 

81. If ORCAA will consider a COTS solution, common industry practices will allow the vendor to 
own the software Title, intellectual properties, and future derived products.   If a COTS 
solution is selected, will ORCAA waive the ownership requirement from the contract: 
“ORCAA retains the rights to the designed and developed database and any customization of 
plug-ins.” 

If this question refers to products developed for the database, the vendor would retain 

ownership of that item in question, but if it refers to data stored on the product, ORCAA 

must retain ownership of the data. 

82. Stakeholders for the Database: 

Which ORCAA business units will use the database? 

Primarily inspectors, engineers, and administrative staff, but all agency staff have access to 

and use current database.   

How many total ORCAA users will use the database? 

Approximately 20 

Do power users need direct access to the database? 

Yes, the power users would need direct access to the tables. 

Current Database – Finance Questions 

1. What is ORCAA’s Sage financial software system? 

“Sage 50” is a 3rd party accounting software used by our finance department. 

2. Additionally, are there any other features or functionality that the agency would find 
beneficial around the Time Accounting component? 

Question requires more specificity. Attachment A to the RFP includes the features we are 

most interested in but we are certainly open to suggestions for additional functionality.   
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3. For Finance/Accounting, is the public facing side of the system intended to actually take 
payments from customers through the web portal? 

We currently receive payments through Point & Pay, an online payment processing system. 

We would like the new system to either take payments directly or be integrated with a 

payment system such as Point & Pay. 

4. What type of inter-system interface (REST, SOAP, other) is provided by the ORCAA’s Sage 
financial software system? 

We currently use “Sage 50”, which is the desktop application version of Sage. We don’t 

believe there is a supported API available for “Sage 50”. 

Current Database – Size and Basic Structure Questions 

1. How long has the current database model been in use? 

The current database was designed in-house and has been in use since 1999. The backend 

was moved to SQL around 2008 by a contractor. 

2. Can you provide an entity relationship diagram of your database, including tables and their 
corresponding column names?  

How many tables are currently included in your data model? If you are able to provide an 
entity relationship diagram, we can determine this answer ourselves.  

So that we can accurately estimate the “Data migration”, can you please provide a Database 
Schema Report and/or Entity-Relationship Diagram? 

Do you have a generalized system architecture document outlining the current 
infrastructure? 

Could ORCAA provide a copy of the database ER-diagrams for us to estimate the work effort 
might be required? 

What is the largest table in your database, and approximately how many records does it 
contain? 

The current database contains 106 tables (including the timesheet). See Response to 

Questions Attachment A for the relationship diagrams. 

The largest table in the database by both size and number of rows is “timesheethours” at 

132.8 MiB and over 500,000 rows. However, the next largest outside of the timesheet are 

“inspection” (32.1 MiB by size) and “emission” (~55,000 rows). 

3. So that we can analyze the existing solution and provide more precise estimates for a 
replacement solution, can we please have copies of the: 

a) Microsoft Access application 

We cannot share our current database application or MySQL database, but we have 
provided an entity relationship diagram in Response to Questions Attachment A. 

b) MySQL database with sample data 

We cannot share our current database application or MySQL database, but we have 

provided an entity relationship diagram in Response to Comments Attachment A 
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4. What timesheet software does ORCAA currently use for tracking staff hours? 

We currently use a custom database. The backend is in the same MySQL database as our 

main database as there are a few shared tables. The Microsoft Access front end is separate 

from the front end of the main database. 

5. Can you define the major components of your existing system? For example, does your 
current database system contain information related to Registered Sources, NOVs, NOIs and 
Complaints? Are there any major portions of your current business processes that are not 
currently stored within the current database system? 

With the exception of SEPA, our current database tracks all the major programs identified in 

Appendix A including the Asbestos and Demolition program, Complaints, Enforcement 

(NOVs), Invoicing, Outdoor Burning Permits, Registered and AOP Sources, Emission 

Inventory, Source Inspections, Source Permitting (AOP, NOC, NOI), and Source Reporting 

(reviews only). 

6. What is the total size of the database that needs to be migrated (in GB or TB)? 

What is the estimated volume of data to be migrated from the existing database to new 
system? 

Can you provide details on the volume of data stored in the current MySQL database (e.g., 
size, number of tables, records, etc.)? 

The backup of the current backend is 35Mb when zipped, 135Mb when unzipped. See 

answer to Question 2 in this section for information on number of tables, records, etc.  

7. Can you provide screenshots or examples of existing forms, reports, and dashboards? 

Response to Questions Attachment B. 

8. Is there a system that enables linking all on-site equipment, including its specifications, 
operating details, associated control devices, release points, geospatial coordinates, related 
permits, equipment status (e.g., operating, temporarily shut down, permanently shut down, 
removed), and relevant dates? 

The current database includes generating equipment for each source including 

specifications, associated control devices, and release points. There are UTM coordinates by 

emission point for sources that are in our emission inventory. We do link NOC, NOI, and AOP 

permits to the source (for permits after about 1999). We do not currently track operating 

status for equipment (but would like that capability) except we do track equipment that has 

been removed. Operating status is currently only tracked by facility. Note: Entry of 

equipment data has been an ongoing project and will continue to be with the new database. 

Source information is most complete for those sources on the emission inventory 

(approximately 80 sources). 

9. Is there a system that allows tracking different types of burn permits, such as land clearing, 
agricultural, ceremonial, and residential? 

Our current database tracks land clearing, ceremonial, and agricultural burn permits. We 

would like the new system to also track residential burn permits. 
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Current Database – Specific Questions  

1. How accurate and complete is the address data in your system? Have you encountered 
challenges with finding records based on address? 

It is not 100% accurate or complete. We currently rely on our customers to provide correct 

data and staff input the addresses by hand. Yes, we have encountered challenges with 

finding records due to address inconsistencies. We have recently added online complaints, 

permits and notifications that feed directly into our database and have encountered 

additional issues related to incorrect or incomplete addresses. 

2. Does your existing data contain geographic components, such as geocoded addresses or 
spatial coordinates? 

The existing database does not contain geocoded addresses. There is the ability to enter 

UTM coordinates (i.e. UTM Zone, UTMN, UTME) for emission points of sources on our 

emission inventory. 

3. Does your current system store or link to external files such as images, PDFs, or other 
document types? 

How are external files stored? Are they embedded in the database, hosted on an internal file 
server, or stored in a cloud storage service? 

No, the current database system does not store images, PDFs, or other documents and 

there are no links to external files. Any related images, PDFs, or other documents are stored 

independently on our internal file server. 

4. What is the process for tracking and processing asbestos and demolition notifications, 
including amendments? 

Most of our asbestos and demolition notifications are submitted through our online 

webform (Gravity Forms) at https://www.orcaa.org/asbestos-demolition/asbestos-forms-

resources/demolition-notification-form/. The system uses GF DB Connect to send almost all 

the data directly into our database. Due to the one-to-many relationship in our current 

database, the asbestos-containing material type is manually entered and all attachments 

(such as asbestos surveys) are manually saved to our internal server. Staff process payments 

separately and match up notifications to payments, logging the information manually.  

 

Amendments are primarily submitted through the online form, and received via email, but 

due to current database design that data is manually entered into the database by staff. 

5. Can you please detail what is meant by “ORCAA’s database is one of the agency’s key tools 
for data retention and management of records pursuant to agency responsibilities” (e.g. 
provide various use cases)? 

See RFP Attachment A for detailed list of all the programs and data we currently track or 

desire to be tracked by ORCAA’s database. 

https://www.orcaa.org/asbestos-demolition/asbestos-forms-resources/demolition-notification-form/
https://www.orcaa.org/asbestos-demolition/asbestos-forms-resources/demolition-notification-form/
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6. Request you to share the Pain Points of the ORCAA? 

What are the key pain points ORCAA faces with the existing database that the new system 
should address? 

What are the key pain points with the current system, separately for the front-end and back-
end? 

What are the current pain points ORCAA is having with the existing database? 

The detailed list in RFP Attachment A addresses all ORCAA’s requirements and issues we 

have been having in our current database. 

7. Are there any dependencies between the current database and other agency systems or 
external integrations? 

No. 

Data Migration Questions 

1. What type of records (facilities, permits, inspections, emissions inventories etc.) would be 
migrated into the proposed solution? Can you provide a schema of the current database? 
Can you provide an approximate count of each record type that would be migrated? 

Can you provide more details about the current database schema and any specific data 
validation or cleansing requirements during migration? 

Will all existing historical data be migrated, or is there a subset of data to be prioritized? Are 
there any data cleansing or transformation requirements? 

Is there any outdated or redundant data that should be excluded from the migration? 

Please elaborate the contents of the data that will require data migration.  

i. Air source data? 

ii. Permit application data? 

iii. Permit data? 

iv. Emission data? 

v. Inspection data? 

vi. Compliance & Enforcement data? 

vii. Fee and payment data? 

viii. Others, please specify… 

Approximately, how many tables and columns? 

Are there any data integrity issues, such as duplicate records, missing fields, or inconsistent 
data, that require preprocessing? 

Do you require assistance in data cleansing and validation before migration? 

Do you expect the vendor to perform data cleansing activities? 

Response to Questions Attachment A includes entity relationship diagrams for the current 

database.  

All current data needs to be retained and transferred. 
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The current data will need preprocessing prior to data migration to identify duplicate 

records, missing data, and orphans. At this time, ORCAA is planning to conduct that work.  

However, there will likely be some preprocessing that we would like the selected vendor to 

conduct, such as cleaning up address records with incorrect or inconsistent data.  

2. For data comparison after migration, do we need to develop a comparison tool, or are there 
existing tools to verify successful data migration? 

We do not have a comparison tool. 

Mapping Questions 

1. What does the map of regulated sources display, and how can the public use it to view 
records? 

We envision the map link to display the name of the business, type of business, and links to 

available records. 

2. What kind of map is displayed when clicking on an address? 

See RFP Attachment A, Mapping Capabilities. We do not currently have a GIS system or 

other mapping capabilities, so we are open to solutions. 

3. Does ORCAA have a GIS system that can provide mapping services as an API that the 
proposed solution can leverage to provide the functionalities described under the mapping 
capabilities? 

No. 

4. What GIS system does ORCAA currently use (ArcGIS, PostGIS, Google Maps, or another 
platform)? 

We do not currently use a GIS system. Our website uses Leaflet to display interactive maps. 

5. Will ORCAA provide its own API map subscription, or should we provide the subscription 
ourselves? If we provide it, the charges will be based on the number of map API requests. 

We do not currently have an API map subscription. If an API map subscription is needed, 

please include in your proposal. 

API Questions 

1. For EPA integration, will the API and registered access be provided by ORCAA for the 
application to work? 

Our database does not currently have integrated access with any of EPA’s systems. Please 

include what is needed in your proposal and we will discuss the details with the selected 

vendor. 

2. Will the system need API integrations with third-party applications, government databases, 
or IoT sensors? 

EIS & ICIS both likely require API integration. 
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3. Are there existing APIs or integrations with external systems, such as EPA reporting tools, 
financial software, or GIS services? 

No, none of this integration exists in the current system. 

Records Questions 

1. In the RFP it is mentioned that the Key Stakeholders will be Agency Staff, Regulated 
Community (e.g., regulated sources, asbestos contractors) and Public. We would request the 
agency to elaborate on what Public as a stakeholder means in the sense of this RFP. 

The public would include anyone who wants to view publicly available records.   

2. Regarding access to the solution by “regulated community” and “public” users: 

a) Will these users be able to access the application/data anonymously or will they be 
required to authenticate (i.e. create an account and log in to access the information) 

As stated in the RFP, the regulated community includes all regulated entities including 

regulated sources (including AOP sources), asbestos and demolition contractors, and 

outdoor burn permit applicants. Regulated entities will be required to have log-in access to 

upload documents and update information.  

The public (e.g., members of the community) should be able to choose whether to create an 
account or have a single use (guest) sign-in to view publicly available records.  

If the latter, how do you envision that these users will authenticate? 

Users representing registered or AOP sources would need to authenticate through a system 

that meets the requirements of the Cross-Media Electronic Reporting Rule (CROMERR) (see 

https://www.epa.gov/cromerr).  

b) Approximately how many of each of these types of users do you anticipate will access the 
application per month on average? 

We are not sure as we don’t currently have this type of system. We currently register nearly 

700 businesses, approximately 100 contractors, and unknown number of the public. In 

2024, we received 40+ NOC applications, 500+ reports to review, 400+ asbestos 

notifications, 300+ demolition notifications, 700+ complaints, 199 outdoor burning permit 

applications (land clearing, ceremonial, agricultural), and approximately 3,000 residential 

burn permit applications (currently Thurston and a portion of Grays Harbor County only). 

c) Are there peak times when you anticipate more website visitors than the average and 
what is the maximum number of website visitors that you anticipate will access the 
application? 

We do get more submittals during specific seasons. For example, outdoor burning is banned 

during the summer months, so there is a large number of outdoor burn permit applications 

that are received in September and October. Submittals of asbestos and demolition 

notifications tend to pick up in the spring and summer months, prior to and during 

construction season. 

https://www.epa.gov/cromerr
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3. What type of search allows users to edit and save their own search parameters? 

ORCAA is not clear what is meant by this question. As detailed in the RFP Appendix A, 

ORCAA would like staff to have some ability to be able to search and query data and save 

those queries for future use. 

4. What type of audit logging does the system support, and how does it generate detailed 
audit trails and reports? 

Our current system does not have this feature. We would like the proposed system to have 

this feature as described in RFP Attachment A. 

5. What kind of link or feature allows users to browse recently viewed records? 

Our current system does not have this feature. We would like the proposed system to have 

this feature as described in RFP Attachment A. 

6. What kind of functionality allows users to view and link related records? 

ORCAA is not clear what is meant by this question. As detailed in the RFP Appendix A, 

ORCAA identified where we would like related records to be linked so users can easily view 

related records. 

7. What does publishing a public comment notice entail (as required by features 70 and 162)?  

Where do notices need to be published?  

ORCAA is required to publish certain documents for public comment. ORCAA is looking for a 
system that could publish these documents from the database to a public-facing web 
application.  

8. The ORCAA web site (https://www.orcaa.org/) has forms and features that enable 
applicants to submit permit requests for some of the permitting features outlined in the 
functional requirements (for example, outdoor burning). Is it ORCAA’s intent that the new 
system replace these existing features?  

Yes, it is our intent that the new system would replace the current online forms. 

9. In regards to Requirement 46 in Attachment A, the requirement states, "Ability for source to 
request confidentiality for certain submitted via webform.". There seems to be a missing 
word after 'certain', is this requirement intended to say that the entire submission is under 
confidentiality or that portions are? Additionally, it says "The confidentiality request must 
include the exemption citation for each item", what is meant by this statement? 

The missing word is ‘data’. Confidentiality requests cannot be made for the entire document, 

only for the specific data that is confidential. See ORCAA’s Confidential Business Information 

Fact Sheet at https://www.orcaa.org/wp-content/uploads/factform-

ConfidentialitySource.pdf and Request for Confidentiality of Records form, at 

https://www.orcaa.org/wp-content/uploads/form-ConfidentialityRequest_2021.pdf for 

more information.  

https://www.orcaa.org/wp-content/uploads/factform-ConfidentialitySource.pdf
https://www.orcaa.org/wp-content/uploads/factform-ConfidentialitySource.pdf
https://www.orcaa.org/wp-content/uploads/form-ConfidentialityRequest_2021.pdf
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10. Does the system need to integrate with a specific payment processor?  

We currently use Point and Pay to accept credit card and e-check payments. We would like 

the new system to either take payments directly or be integrated with a payment system 

such as Point & Pay. 

11. What is the criteria for data to be redacted? 

Several state laws (RCWs) allow for confidentiality. We currently store confidential data in 

our database and need the ability to redact the data for public viewing and for printed 

copies (for example, currently anonymous complainant’s personal data is redacted, but only 

upon printing). If a new system can allow the public to access our data, we need to digitally 

redact those records. See ORCAA’s Confidential Business Information Fact Sheet at 

https://www.orcaa.org/wp-content/uploads/factform-ConfidentialitySource.pdf for more 

information. 

12. Are there any specific reporting requirements (e.g., dashboards, scheduled reports, custom 
analytics)? 

Yes, this would be discussed with the selected vendor. 

13. Will we be provided with CROMERR-compliant documents or documentation? 

CROMERR is EPA’s Cross-Media Electronic Reporting Rule (see 

https://www.epa.gov/cromerr). Regulatory agencies that want to receive electronic 

documents must do so through a system that meets the requirements of CROMERR.  

14. Does ORCAA have existing digital signature requirements, such as specific legal or 
compliance standards for eSignatures? 

Are electronic signatures allowed? 

EPA has requirements for submittal of electronic document in its Cross-Media Electronic 

Reporting Rule (CROMERR) (see https://www.epa.gov/cromerr).  The rule has specific 

requirements for electronic signatures. 

In regard to submittals for this RFP, ORCAA will accept digital signatures. 

15. What does it mean for users to merge data from the database into Microsoft Word 
templates? 

We currently have form letters and other documents set up in Word using bookmarks that 

match with fields from the database. Users can click on a button in the database to open the 

Word document and fill in the fields using data from the specific record they are in using the 

bookmarks in Word. For example, our Notice of Violation data is entered into the database 

and we use Microsoft Word to create a printout of the violation and letter. Specific 

information from the entered data drops into the violation form and letter (name, address, 

dates, etc.) 

Data Entry Questions 

1. Will all phone call details be entered by ORCAA members for use in the application? 

Yes, ORCAA staff will manually enter phone call information into the new database. 

https://www.orcaa.org/wp-content/uploads/factform-ConfidentialitySource.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/cromerr
https://www.epa.gov/cromerr
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2. Do we need OCR for document uploads to analyze them, or are the documents uploaded 
only for storage? 

Preference is for OCR capability.  

3. If any contractor/vendor assisted with the development of this RFP or provided you with an 
initial evaluation, proof of concept, demonstration, pricing, or any other analysis related to 
this solicitation: 

a) Please provide the name of all contractors and/or vendors 

b) Are these contractors and/or vendors eligible to bid on this project? 

ORCAA developed the RFP without outside assistance. ORCAA received no initial evaluation, 

proof of concept or analysis related to this solicitation.  

ORCAA did receive two product demonstrations during the information gathering stage of 

process, and the names of all bidders will become a matter of public record 48 hours after 

the bid window closes.   

4. What types of activities can be searched for at a specific address? 

Examples would include locating current and past permits, complaints, previous violations, 

and business names associated with the address. 

5. How is access to the CROMERR-compliant online system managed? Is it restricted to 
registered users, or can submissions be made without logging in? 

CROMERR is EPA’s Cross-Media Electronic Reporting Rule (see 

https://www.epa.gov/cromerr). Not all ORCAA programs need to use a CROMERR-compliant 

system for electronic submissions (e.g., outdoor burning permits do not require the use of 

CROMERR), but a fair number of them do. Users of CROMERR-compliant systems must 

register and log in make submittals. 

6. Is there an existing integration with EPA’s or does the system need to establish one? 

Our current database is not currently integrated with any of EPA’s systems. Data submittal to 

EPA is currently done through manual data entry or batch uploads. 

7. How will the system ensure that any data submitted to the EPA is automatically redacted to 
remove confidential information? 

Handling of confidential data is one of the requirements listed in the RFP Attachment A 

(Items 46-50). As detailed in RFP Attachment A, the proposed system should allow users to 

identify confidential data so that it can be redacted when submitting data to EPA. 

8. What do 'regulated sources' and 'permitting' refer to in the context of linking specific 
timesheet entries? 

Regulated sources are the businesses we register, permit, and have regulatory authority 

over. For certain permits, we track our time spent and bill the applicants on an hourly basis. 

Our current timesheet is associated with our main database such that staff can enter time 

associated with a permit to charge hourly fees as necessary. 

https://www.epa.gov/cromerr
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9. How will the online system integrate with our system to process SEPA Environmental 
Checklists and other documents? 

See RFP Attachment A Items 63-70 for SEPA requirements. 

10. Regarding requirement 83, do you envision that hard copy complaints will need to have the 
data automatically parsed out of the document and automatically processed into the 
system? 

Not necessarily, hard copy complaints could be entered manually if the system is unable to 

parse out data. 

11. Are projects a type of record that need to be tracked in the proposed solution? Can you 
provide an example of a project? 

Tracking projects by a project code with available project sub-codes for distinct project tasks 

would be best. 

Training/Ongoing Support Questions 

1. What is the expected level of training for agency staff (e.g., administrator training, end-user 
training, developer training)? 

Administrator Training, Power User training, and End-user training at a minimum. 

2. Do you require on-site training, virtual training, or a mix of both? 

This is negotiable. 

3. What level of ongoing technical support is expected after deployment (e.g., SLA 
requirements, response times)? 

To be discussed with selected vendor. 

RFP Questions - Finance 

1. Should proof of insurance be submitted with the proposal, or is confirmation of compliance 
sufficient, with documentation provided upon contract award? 

A certificate of insurance does not need to be provided with the proposal. However, the 

contract will contain insurance requirements in which a certificate of coverage will need to 

be furnished to the awarding agency. Insurance coverage provided to us by a vendor is 

subject to legal review and review by ORCAA’s insurance provider.  

2. Does ORCAA require Cyber Liability Insurance or any additional coverage beyond what is 
listed in the RFP? 

The awardee must be able to meet or exceed the minimum insurance requirements 

specified in the RFP unless approved otherwise by the agency.   

3. If our insurance coverage meets the required protection levels but differs slightly in structure, 
would ORCAA accept alternative coverage? 

Your insurance should meet the minimum substantive requirements.   
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4. "Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the Agency." Which Agency 
ORCAA is talking about? 

Agency refers to ORCAA. 

5. "Consultant must furnish the Agency with certificates of insurance required by this clause." 
Can agency elobrate more on the point 

The contract will contain insurance requirements in which a certificate of coverage will need 

to be furnished to the awarding agency. The awardee must be able to meet or exceed the 

minimum insurance requirements specified in the RFP unless approved otherwise by the 

agency. Insurance coverage provided to us by a vendor is subject to legal review and review 

by ORCAA’s insurance provider. 

6. If the time accounting features are provided through a separate vendor’s software, is the 
licensing for that software to be included as part of the project budget or is that handled 
under a separate purchase agreement?  

If part of the proposal is a change to how we operate and as such incurs additional costs it 

should be included within the project budget. 

7. Will the training and ongoing support budget be separate from the $150,000 allowed? 

Initial training is included in $150,000 budget. Ongoing support will be discussed with the 
selected vendor. 

8. We request ORCAA to provide us the Cost Worksheet they would like the vendor to follow. 

There is no generated cost worksheet to follow. ORCAA is looking for RFP submissions to 
include costs as a part of the proposal process. 

9. For Time Accounting in Attachment A, if a different vendor's timesheet software is used, can 
this software be a SaaS solution with a subscription cost, or must all costs be accounted for 
in the bid? 

On-going costs should be identified separately from the separate from the allowed $150,000 

and they should be itemized as such so that we can identify them in our review. 

10. If the solution involves monthly or yearly application subscriptions or licenses, does ORCAA 
have specific budget limitations for ongoing costs? 

We would want to see any of the monthly or yearly costs outlined within any submitted 

RFP’s so that we can make the most informed choice. 

11. Could ORCAA please confirm if there is any template for the pricing? 

There is no template for pricing.  

12. How is this project funded, and is there a possibility of additional funding? 

This project is funded by the agency and any discussion of additional funding would be 

discussed with the selected vendor. 
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RFP Questions - Other 

1. Could ORCAA please grant an extension on the due date? 

Will ORCAA extend the due date by one or two weeks to allow ample time for a quality bid 
response so that it address all of the technical requirements? 

As of March 19, 2025, we have extended the due date for proposals to April 21, 2025, at 

4:30 p.m. 

2. Proposal Evaluation Criteria: Are there any specific criteria or weightings that will be used in 
evaluating proposals beyond those listed in the RFP? 

The criteria are listed in RFP Attachment B. 

Can ORCAA provide more details on how the proposals will be evaluated? Will there be a 
weighted scoring system, and what criteria will carry the most weight 

The criteria are listed in RFP Attachment B. 

3. Contract Terms: What are the expected terms of the contract, including duration, payment 
schedules, and termination clauses? 

This is to be discussed with selected vendor. 

4. Future Expansion Plans: Are there any plans for future expansion or integration with other 
systems that should be considered in the database design? 

Currently there are no continued expansion plans. 

5. Is there any specific date/month, ORCAA expects Project to be completed (Project Timeline)? 

This will be discussed with the selected vendor 

6. What is the expected level of technical expertise among ORCAA staff, and what kind of 
ongoing support or training will be needed? 

This will be discussed with selected vendors. 

7. Is this a single award or multiple award contract? 

Single award. 

8. What is the anticipated date of award and contract execution? 

See Section IV of the RFP. 

9. What is the anticipated timeline for this project? 

Beyond what’s listed in the RFP, this will be discussed with the selected vendor. 

10. What is the total number of resources which the client is expecting to work on this project? 

The expectation is that the submitted proposal will outline how many personnel will be 

working on the project. 

11. Will the client allow candidates to perform work 100% remotely? 

Yes. 

12. Who developed and maintaining the current database? 

It was developed and is maintained by in-house staff. 
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13. When do you anticipate target completion date? 

This will be discussed with the selected vendor.  

14. Do you expect the vendor to perform any tasks on-site, or can all work be performed 
remotely 

Remote is acceptable. 

15. The scope mentions design and implementation of a database solution, but it appears 
ORCAA is looking to modernize or replace both the Access front-end and MySQL back-end. 
Can you confirm this? 

We are looking to modernize both ends of the system. 

16. The RFP mentions design, development, and support, but there are no defined requirements 
for post-implementation support. Could you clarify what level of support ORCAA expects 
during and after the solution's development? 

We will be looking to discuss a potential on-going support contract for post-implementation 

support. During implementation, we expect the selected vendor to work with agency staff to 

ensure the project is implemented as requested. 

17. How many employees or personnel will need only front-end access, only database access, or 
both? 

Three users with full administrative permissions across the system, initially up to 17 users 

with user level permissions to the front-end of the system.  

18. What level of user training is required at the end of the project? Should training cover 
administrators, end-users, and external users, or is it limited to specific groups? 

There should be administrator training given to select agency staff, as well as end-user 

training for the whole staff. 

19. Would ORCAA be open to a vendor-managed solution (e.g., a web-based application that is 
developed, hosted, and maintained by the vendor), with full administrative access provided 
as required? 

Yes, provided the solution complies with relevant laws and regulations regarding data 

management. 

20. While the RFP outlines a tentative timeline only the start date, could you confirm the 
expected total project duration, from contract execution to full deployment? 

Beyond what’s listed in the RFP, this will be discussed with the selected vendor. 

21. Are there any regulatory, operational, or funding-driven deadlines that must be met? 

No. 

22. The Appendix A document mentions various components. Could you confirm whether this 
RFP is specifically for database migration, or does it also include the other components 
mentioned? 

This RFP is for the complete replacement of the current database system, including back-

end, front-end, data migration, training, etc. 
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23. What is the weightage per section can evaluation criteria be more specific? 

RFP Attachment B is the evaluation form, with the point values for each section listed. 

24.  What is the expectation for technical support response times and working hours? 

This is to be discussed with selected vendor. 

25. Is the functionality documented in Attachment A representative of current database 
functionality? 

RFP Attachment A represents what we are looking for in a new database. We have listed 

both current functions and new functions we want with a new system. 

26. With the flexibility stated under V. Budget, "Respondents may make note of any functionality 
items identified in this document that exceed the budget and provide a cost estimate.", is 
there a priority amongst the items listed in the requirements? And if so, can that information 
be provided? 

We have not prioritized the list, nor do we plan to.   

27. Are you able to confirm if all of the features listed are required features or is there a list that 
breaks out required features and preferred features?  

There is not a separate list of required versus preferred, it is a collective list of our current 

features as well as new features we would like to have. 

28. Could ORCAA please confirm whether vendors are allowed to submit their responses 
exclusively via email? 

As per the RFP: “One printed copy OR one electronic copy.” 

29. Could ORCAA please confirm if vendors have to include it within the response RFP Evaluation 
Form? 

The RFP evaluation form is for ORCAA to use for evaluating proposals received. 

30. Could ORCAA kindly clarify how vendors have to fill out the RFP Evaluation Form? 

The vendors do not complete the RFP Evaluation form. The RFP Evaluation form was 

provided to be transparent on how ORCAA will be evaluating proposals. 

31. In the selection criteria section on page 7, it references the draft evaluation worksheet 
Attachment B.  There is not a document titled as attachment B.  Can you just confirm that 
the RFP Evaluation Form on the last page of the RFP is Attachment B.  

RFP Attachment B is labeled on the website where the RFP is posted. 

32. Could ORCAA please confirm the required forms that must be submitted with the proposal? 

RFP Attachment A must be completed and returned with the proposal. 

33. Could ORCAA kindly clarify the exact number of attached files needed for the response? 

The bottom of page 6 and top of page 7 in the RFP shows exactly what we are looking for in 

submittals. 

34. Could ORCAA please provide clarification on the appropriate section within the response 
where vendors should include the forms? 

Page 6 of the RFP, please include a completed RFP Attachment A with proposal. 
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35. Is ORCAA looking for a custom solution or a COTS (Commercial off the shelf) solution? 

We are looking for the solution that best satisfies the agency needs. 

36. How soon is ORCAA looking for the database to be implemented? 

Beyond what’s listed in the RFP, this will be discussed with the selected vendor. 

37. Could ORCAA please clarify what is meant by "A recommended approval process for project 
deliverables/tasks." Is this approval process to set the deliverables or to approve deliverables 
once they are completed? 

We are looking for a suggested process to facilitate the delivery & approval of project 

deliverables. (IE. Weekly meetings on teams/zoom, conference calls, e-mail chains.) 

38. Can firms provide ongoing project references or is ORCAA looking for completed project 
references? 

We are looking for any references that demonstrate the bidder’s competency in developing 

the desired product. 

39. Are there any specific challenges or issues with the current system that you want to address 
in the new solution? 

RFP Attachment A addresses everything we are looking for; including new items and pain 

points. 

40. What are the key functionalities that the new database must support for managing air 
quality programs? 

RFP Attachment A includes everything we’re looking for. 

41. Is there any preference for the user interface (front-end) for MS-Access replacement? 

No preference, it just needs to work to satisfy RFP Attachment A. 

42. Do you require workflow automation for any agency processes? 

Yes, workflows are discussed within RFP Attachment A, further specific processes to be 

discussed with selected vendor. 

43. Are there any deadlines related to regulatory or operational requirements that the project 
must align with? 

No. 

44. Could ORCAA please confirm if vendors can meet the requirements with a subcontractor? 

Yes, subcontractors are allowed, see RFP Section VI, pg. 4. 

45. Could ORCAA please clarify if subcontracting is permitted under this RFP? 

Yes, subcontractors are allowed, see RFP Section VI, pg. 4. 

46. Could ORCAA please clarify if vendors can use subcontractors' references? 

If using subcontractors, they would need references as well. 
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47. Could ORCAA please confirm whether vendors can demonstrate their experience through a 
subcontractor’s past performance? 

References need to be included for primary contractor, in addition to any subcontractors 

contributing to the proposal. 

48. What is the expected timeline for implementation, including key milestones? 

Beyond what’s listed in the RFP, this will be discussed with the selected vendor. 

49. What are your expectations for the project timeline and completion? 

Beyond what’s listed in the RFP, this will be discussed with the selected vendor. 

50. RFP states two different RFP proposal due dates: March 14 on page 8, and April 7 on page.  
Please clarify the accurate proposal due date. 

This was an error in the original RFP and was corrected on March 4, 2025. The due date for 

proposals is now Monday, April 21, 2025 by 4:30pm (PDT).   

51. In case firms are submitting confidential information in the response, could the City please 

clarify the proper way for vendors to mark it as confidential? 

See ORCAA’s Request for Confidentiality of Records form at https://www.orcaa.org/wp-

content/uploads/form-ConfidentialityRequest_2021.pdf. There is additional information on 

how to submit confidential information at https://www.orcaa.org/wp-

content/uploads/factform-ConfidentialitySource.pdf.  

 

RFP Questions - Personnel 

1. The RFP requests details on key personnel and their experience. Should we focus exclusively 
on senior project leads and technical experts, or do you require qualifications for all 
proposed team members, including support staff? 

This should just be a brief introduction of personnel working on the project, with job title, 

who they are in relation to the project, and their qualifications. 

2. For the cost breakdown, does ORCAA prefer individual hourly rates per team member, or 
would a summary-level allocation by workstream or task be more appropriate? 

A summary-level allocation presented by task would be more appropriate. 

3. Is there a preferred format for presenting personnel qualifications (e.g., structured bios, 
tabular format, or a combination of both)? 

No preference. 

4. The RFP requests a description of our company’s size and organization. To ensure we provide 
relevant details, could you clarify whether ORCAA is primarily interested in overall company 
size and global presence, or the size, structure, and resources of the specific team assigned 
to this project? 

All this information would be useful, anything that will help ORCAA evaluate the 

qualifications of the bidder.   

https://www.orcaa.org/wp-content/uploads/form-ConfidentialityRequest_2021.pdf
https://www.orcaa.org/wp-content/uploads/form-ConfidentialityRequest_2021.pdf
https://www.orcaa.org/wp-content/uploads/factform-ConfidentialitySource.pdf
https://www.orcaa.org/wp-content/uploads/factform-ConfidentialitySource.pdf


27 

 

5. The RFP requests three client references from the past three years. Does ORCAA have any 
preferences regarding the industry, project size, or scope for these references? 

We request references that show relevant experience. 

6. Would ORCAA accept references from projects completed slightly beyond the three-year 
timeframe if they are highly relevant to this engagement? 

Yes. 

7. "Recommendations of references" How many refrences are expected? What are the details 
to be provided per refrence? 

See RFP, item 8 on pages 7. 

8. Do we need to provide the resumes with this proposal? If yes what are the requirements per 

role? 

Resumes may be submitted but are not specifically required by the RFP.  

9. Could ORCAA please clarify the reference requirements for this solicitation? 

ORCAA would like to references for three previous clients, as well as see three examples of 

relevant database work performed by the company. 

10. Could ORCAA please clarify what is meant by "These references should be able to verify the 
recent experience (within previous 3 years) of each person involved in the proposal for this 
project."? What does ORCAA mean by each person? Is it the personnel that will provide the 
services that are listed in the proposal? 

Yes, each person who will be working on the delivered product.   

11. If a firm is required to provide references for personnel assigned to this project, are firms 
required to provide three references per person or can a firm just provide three company 
references overall? 

We are looking for references for the personnel assigned to this project. 

12. Under the submission requirements, it states "Examples of at least three (3) databases 
developed by the Consultant in the last five (5) years that are similar in scope." Can firms 
provide case studies to suffice this point or is ORCAA looking for something specific? 

We are looking for information from previous projects or case studies that are the most 

relevant to the work that is being requested. Case studies are acceptable. 

13. Can firms replace presented personnel with equally qualified personnel if they are no longer 
available at the time of contract award? 

Yes. 

14. Under the submission requirements, it states "Description of relevant experience and 
qualifications for each person involved in the project." Can firms provide resumes to suffice 
this point? 

Yes. 
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15. Will ORCAA please amend the client References and project example work (in section VIII 
Proposal Requirements) on page 7 items #8 and #9 to be amended within the past 10-years? 
We would like to utilize a variety of clients as references and example work that we have 
specifically done. Limiting references to three years and example work to 5-years will not 
allow for a variety of complexities. 

Vendors should include the best references to satisfy the request; going back further than 3-

5 years is acceptable. 

16. Will ORCAA allow full remote work for this from our Sacramento corporate office? 

Yes. 

Agency-related Questions 

1. How many users will be concurrently accessing the system? Also, please specify the total 
number of users and their respective roles. 

On average expect a minimum of 8 employees accessing the data at any given time. 

Unknown how many outside users would be accessing the system. 

ORCAA currently has approximately 20 staff. Our staff list and their roles are listed at 

https://www.orcaa.org/about/staff/. 

2. What is this Outdoor Burning Permits? 

There are several types of outdoor burning permits, and different activities require different 

permits. More information on the different types of outdoor burning permits is available at 

https://www.orcaa.org/burning/outdoor-burning/. 

3. What is burn address? 

The address where a permitted burn is occurring. 

4. What is meant by "standard permit language"? Could you clarify if it refers to predefined 
regulatory wording, common legal terms, or a specific format used for issuing permits? 

This question is in relation to Item 127 in RFP Attachment A. In this case, “standard permit 

language” is ORCAA’s standard permit language which is specific to each type of burn 

permit. 

5. What are NSPS & NESHAP Compliance Tracking 

RFP Appendix A Item 138 refers to the ability to list what New Source Performance 

Standards (NSPS) and National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAPs) 

apply to each source and/or piece of equipment. 

6. What is a reverse lookup, and how is it used to verify contacts associated with regulated 
sources? 

We need to be able to find pertinent information for our regulated businesses in multiple 

ways, such as by address, by name, and by contact persons associated with the business. 

7. What is mean by source permitting? 

Source permitting refers to several different types of permits ORCAA issues to sources 

(businesses, industries, institutions, public utilities, and municipalities that cause, or have 

https://www.orcaa.org/burning/outdoor-burning/
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the potential to cause, air pollution). Source permitting includes Air Operating Permits, 

Notice of Construction permits, and Notices of Intent. More information is available on our 

website at https://www.orcaa.org/for-business/. 

8. What was the annual spend for the previous year on this Project? 

There were no expenditures in the previous year for this project.  

https://www.orcaa.org/for-business/
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Attachment A 
Entity Relationships – Current Database 

The relationship diagrams below are in the same order they are presented in RFP Attachment A. 

 

Time Accounting 

Fields with red strikeout are no longer used. 
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Asbestos/Demolition 

Color-coded fields are also linked. 
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Complaints 

Fields marked in green are linked to their respective tables. 
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Enforcement 

Fields marked in green are linked to their respective tables. 
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Finance/Accounting 

Fields marked in green are linked to their respective tables. 
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Outdoor Burning Permits 

Fields marked in green are linked to their respective tables. 
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Source Information 
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Source Emission Inventory  

The UOM (Unit of Measure) table is used throughput this section as denoted by the orange marks. 

(In relation to EPA’s EIS system, ORCAA Point = EPA Emission Unit, ORCAA Segment = EPA Process. We do have tables established 

linking our tables to EPA’s (e.g., pollutants, estimation method, point, segment)) 
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Source Inspections 
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Source Permitting 
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Source Permitting – First Contact 

Fields marked in green are linked to their respective tables. 
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Source Reporting 

Fields marked in green are linked to their respective tables. 
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Attachment B 
Current Database – Front End Screen Shots 

The screen shots below are in the same order they are presented in RFP Attachment A. 
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Time Accounting 
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Asbestos/Demolition 
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Complaints 
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Enforcement 
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Finance/Accounting 
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Outdoor Burning Permits 
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Source Information 
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Source Emission Inventory  
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Source Inspections 
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Source Permitting 
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Source Permitting – First Contact 
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Source Reporting 
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